‘ Lancashire

/\ : ,
N\ Enterprise Partnership

LEP - Business Support Management Board

Wednesday, 6th June, 2018 in Committee Room 'D’ (The Henry
Bolingbroke Room) - County Hall, Preston, at 10.30 am

Agenda

Part | (Items Publicly Available)

-_—

Welcome and Apologies for Absence

2, Declaration of Interests

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 11th October 2017 (Pages 1 - 4)
4, Matters Arising

5. Presentation on Productivity Study
Presentation by Val Moon and Professor Susan Smith - UCLAN

6. Growth Hub Annual Report 2017-18 (Pages 5 - 22)

7. Forward Plan
Verbal update.

8. Reporting to Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board
9. Any Other Business

10. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Business Support Management Board is scheduled to
be held at 10:30am on 19 October 2018 in Committee Room 'B' - The
Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston.



11. Exclusion of the Press and Public

The Committee is asked to consider whether, under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972, it considers that the public should be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following items of business on
the grounds that there would be a likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the appropriate paragraph of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 as indicated against the heading to the item.

Part Il (Items that are Private and Confidential)

12. Overview of Publicly Funded Business Support in Lancashire
(Pages 23 - 40)

13. Design and Commissioning of Boost 3 (Pages 41 - 44)



Agenda ltem 3

‘ Lancashire

7\ - -
a3 Enterprise Partnership

LEP - Business Support Management Board

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 11th October, 2017 at
12.00pm at the Committee Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee Room,
County Hall, Preston

Present

Michael Blackburn (Chairman)

Gillian Bardin Paul Foster
Anthony Camm Sue Smith

In Attendance

Andrew Leeming, Boost Programme Manager - Business Growth, LCC
Andy Milroy, Senior Democratic Services Officer, LCC
Andy Walker, Head of Service - Business Growth, LCC

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence

The Chair, Mike Blackburn, welcomed all to the meeting, round table
introductions were made. Apologies for absence were presented from Tim
Webber, Babs Murphy, Gary Lovatt, Councillor Frank McKenna and Stuart
Thompson.

Anthony Camm attended as a substitute for Councillor Frank McKenna, Paul
Foster attended as a substitute for Gary Lovatt.

2. Declarations of Interest
None
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2017

Resolved: The minutes of the meeting held on 19" January 2017 were
approved as an accurate record and signed by the Chair.

4, Matters Arising

Andy Walker provided an update on recent developments regarding the BAE
workforce and support being provided.

Page 1



Work with Key Sectors in Lancashire

Andy Walker, Head of Service Business Growth, Lancashire County Council
introduced a report (circulated) which updated the Business Support
Management Board on work with Key Sectors in Lancashire.

The update included work with the North West Aerospace Alliance, the
Automotive sector, Energy, Health and Creative Industries.

At this point Michael Gibson, Pete Walker and Mark Thwaite (all Digital
Lancashire) joined the meeting and gave a presentation about the work of Digital
Lancashire.

It was highlighted that the Digital Industry was the fastest growing industry in
Lancashire with a number of businesses expanding and growing over the last few
years. In particular a cluster of Digital Businesses are growing quickly in Burnley,
Chorley, Preston and the Lancaster areas.

In addition, the presentation provided information about links with education
providers and the Digital Sector, strengths and weaknesses and future ambitions
to grow and expand the sector.

Resolved: That:
(i) The updates provided in the reports be noted, and

(ii) The presentation from Digital Lancashire on their initial work to underpin a
sector strategy be noted.

Strategic Economic Plan - Evidence Base

Andy Walker presented a report (circulated) which updated the Business Support
Management Board (BSMB) on activity which is taking place to ensure that the
LEP's new Strategic Economic Plan has a current, relevant and robust evidence
base.

It was highlighted that the Plan was of particular relevance to the BSMB as the
local response suggested from this analysis will need its own governance and
action plans and will be primarily focused on businesses.

In preparing for the new SEP, the LEP has had time to explore some key areas of
work, to refresh the understanding of Lancashire's performance and explore new
ways of working. This work has included the development of a fresh set of
economic forecasts, coupled with work on productivity, international trade and
innovation. In addition to this programme of work, the LEP has this week received
confirmation that BEIS will finance a significant piece of work on Energy within
Lancashire.

Page 2



The research and policy development ideas around the topics of productivity,
internationalisation and innovation all primarily share the business community
as the key actor and focus of intervention. Other LEP areas have developed
specific governance structures such as Innovation Boards which drive these
policy areas.

Resolved: The Business Support Management Board:

(i) Endorsed the approach taken so far to develop the Strategic Economic
Plan.

(ii) Agreed to contribute to the review as appropriate through discussions and
briefings with LEP officers.

LEP Update

Andy Walker agreed to circulate to Board Members information regarding the
work of the LEP including snapshots of press releases.

Co-ordination of Publicly Funded Business Support in Lancashire

Andy Walker presented a report (circulated) which updated the Business Support
Management Board on the Co-ordination of Public Funded Business Support in
Lancashire.

It was noted that publicly funded business support should be working to
complement these existing relationships and operating in areas of market failure,
where businesses need encouragement or awareness to pursue a course of
action which would otherwise be seen as economically rational.

Within Lancashire there are a range of programmes running which enjoy public
funding. Whilst declining, we can still see a number of national programmes
promoting self-employment and business support which operate within the area.
Businesses can also benefit from individual programmes within local areas
backed by their local authorities, but the bulk of activity within the current publicly
funded business support offer draws on Lancashire's allocation from European
Structural Investment Funds (ESIF).

Whilst clearly impacted by Brexit, the current understanding around the future
of this funding is that the UK Government will underwrite this programme up
until 2021 and longer for financial instruments (loan and equity investment
programmes).

The Board commented that at a future meeting the Board could consider a
specific item on the impact of Brexit and what it means for European Funding with
a view to mapping out the next 5 years with regard to the business and innovation
sectors.

Page 3



Resolved: The Business Support Management Board:

(i) Noted the update on the Lancashire business support offer.

(i) Endorsed the model for co-ordination set out around business finance
services as a template for co-ordinating activity in other thematic areas;
and

(iii) Agreed to update the LEP and ESIF partnership around management
proposals for this group of services.

9. Reporting to Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board
In terms of reporting to the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board, the Chair
summarised that Growth Hubs and their impact on Lancashire will be an item to
bring to the attention of the LEP Board at a future meeting.

10. Any Other Business

An update was provide on recent developments regarding BAE Systems.

11. Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next meeting date was to be confirmed.

Page 4



D=

Lancashire Agenda ltem 6

Enterprise Partnership

LEP — Sub Committee

LEP - Business Support Management Board
Private and Confidential: No

Date: Wednesday, 6 June 2018

Growth Hub Annual Report 2017-18

Report Author: Andy Walker, Tel: 01772 535629,
andy.walker@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

It is good practice in terms of LEP governance arrangements and a condition of
BEIS growth hub funding that an annual report on activity is presented to the
Business Support Management Board for consideration.

This report provides an update on the overall operation of Boost — Lancashire's
Business Growth Hub, levels of activity against ERDF and local key performance
indicators and a summary of any independent evaluation work undertaken in the
past year.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Business Support Management Board consider the

detail of this report and recommend that the LEP Board endorses the annual report
at its next meeting on 26 June 2018.

1. Background and Advice

1.1 Boost — Lancashire's Business Growth Hub has now been operational since
2012, working under the auspices and governance of the Lancashire
Enterprise Partnership. Over those six years, the national growth hub
network has grown to mirror the network of thirty eight LEPs although
provision varies widely in terms of scale, delivery focus, funding and hosting.

1.2  The Lancashire growth hub model has been sustained by a combination of
Lancashire County Council and Lancashire County Developments match
funding leveraged against European Regional Development Fund (ERDF)
resource. More latterly, a contribution towards the operation of Growth Hubs
has been made by BEIS, and whilst there is a commitment to invest in 18/19
and 19/20, this funding has remained at the same level.

Page 5



Lancashire
Enterprise Partnership

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Overall and specific performance indicators are reported in Appendix 1, but as
headline, the Growth Hub is now providing support to over 1800 businesses
per annum and has supported the creation of over 1700 new jobs.

Duty to Report and Review Annual Performance of the Growth Hub

It is now a formal condition of BEIS support to the individual Growth Hubs that
an Annual Report is presented via the Growth Hub governance structure to
the LEP for approval. This report details overall performance, any issues in
delivery, the "logic" model which underpins the operation of the Growth Hub
and any evaluation of the service which has taken place within the last year.
This annual report is also shared directly with BEIS.

The report itself is included as Appendix 1 to this report and a more detail
extract of the logic model is included as Appendix 2 for clarity.

Headline Information

Over the period 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 some 2921 enquiries were
handled by the Boost Gateway, of which 456 were dealt with at source, 2465
enquiries resulted in referrals of which 2034 were referred to Boost projects
and 592 were referred to other business support organisations.

Overall Boost is performing well, with the majority of targets being achieved or
just slightly below expectation, however there have been areas of concern.
The activity on C2 grants (Growth Vouchers) has consistently fallen behind
targets despite intensive support and guidance from the LCC PMT. This has
a knock on effect on the C1 targets (C2 is a subset of C1) and on C6 that
represents the private sector contribution to match the Growth Vouchers.

The delivery contractor has indicated that they will not be able to achieve the
lifetime target (300) for Growth Vouchers (2016-18) and therefore a revised
target of 168 has been agreed together with a reduced C6 target. The
resulting deficit of 132 C1 outputs has been resolved in discussion with two of
the other Boost delivery organisations who have agreed to increase their
performance to make up this shortfall by the end of 2018.

All other ESIF targets are projected to be achieved by the end of 2018.

An independent evaluation of Boost was conducted in late 2017 by leading
economic consultancy Regeneris, with the results being published in
December. The report states that “early estimates of economic impact are
encouraging”. In terms of achieving the core aim of encouraging business
growth, the report is positive.

Page 6



‘ Lancashire

Z\
A

3.5

Enterprise Partnership

The report concludes that the overall direction of travel is positive, including:

» Growth in turnover of businesses assisted — Output progress on the
number of enterprises receiving support is on track. Our survey
measured changes in business performance through Boost including
turnover. It is too early to be definitive, but 28% of respondents have
observed turnover improvements since receiving Boost support.

« Growth in value added in supported companies — Output progress on
the number of enterprises receiving support is on track. The survey
measures changes in business performance through Boost including
productivity. It is too early to be definitive, but 38% of respondents have
observed productivity improvements since receiving Boost support.

* Improved business formation rates — Lancashire has a below average
rate of business births relative to regional and national benchmarks.
Output progress in terms of the number of new enterprises supported
and the number of potential entrepreneurs assisted to be enterprise
ready is largely on track. The survey revealed that 16% of respondents
identified that their aim was to start a business prior to receiving
support. All of these have made progress against this aim, with 40%
identifying progress has been made but more to achieve, whilst 60%
have achieved their mission.

» Improved new business survival rates — the beneficiary survey
assessed progress against business aims established prior to Boost
support. This included 71% of all respondents saying they wanted to
grow the business and 85% identifying that some progress had been
made with achieving this since receiving support.

* More business support programmes aligned with Boost — the
effectiveness of Boost in referring more than 80% of enquiries received
to further support is testament to the progress Boost has made in
building an aligned business support ecosystem in Lancashire.

Client Satisfaction

In October 2017, as part of the Evaluation process, Regeneris conducted an
online survey of businesses and individuals who had received support from
Boost. 256 responses were received. Despite dissatisfaction among some
businesses over the level of understanding of the challenges they face, the
survey suggests that beneficiaries are generally satisfied with the support they
received through Boost.

When asked about the overall quality of advice and support provided, almost
three quarters (72%) of respondents rated the overall quality of support as
good or very good. Almost two thirds of beneficiaries rated the usefulness of
the support highly. This is a substantial improvement from the previous

Page 7



7

7\

S

Lancashire
Enterprise Partnership

evaluation of Boost in 2014, where a significant proportion of the beneficiaries
(two in five) rated the usefulness of the support as poor or very poor. This
could be a reflection of the efforts made to better tailor support, which had
previously been highlighted as an area for improvement.

In terms of the potential future impact of Boost on those businesses assisted,
the survey found that many businesses are mid-way through, or a matter of
months from finalising their involvement with Boost. Whilst impacts are only
just starting to emerge for many beneficiaries, there are encouraging
prospects for the near future. One fifth of respondents expect a large or
transformational increase in turnover over the next 12 months. More than 70%
of businesses expect some level of turnover increase within the next 12
months, with more than 60% expecting to increase employment.

Page 8



6 obed

Boost Logic Model

Project Rationale

Strategic Context

= Lancashire’s Business Growth Hub

= Improve competitiveness of SMEs

= Accelerate the growth of SMEs,
stimulate investment and job creation

by identifying and removing barriers
to growth, encouraging innowvation

Market Failure

= A large proportion of businesses
do not engage with business
support

= Business start up and survival rates
need to be improved

= Business support needs

and promoting enterprise

i

Impacts

A coherent, well
understood and well used
business support
infrastructure

A more robust local
CONoMmy

A well embedded

entrepreneurial culture
More competitive
business

Higher rates of
innovation

productivity gap

Outcomes

Met increase in turnover
GVA increase

% of potential
entrepreneurs launching a
business

% of new businesses
surviving beyond 12
months

% of businesses accessing
business support services
% of Lancashire business
support programmes
aligned with Boost

coordinating to make it more
understood and accessible to SMEs
= Accelerate SME growth to close

Objectives

Accelerate growth of Lancashire’s SMEs to make them more

Outputs

3,000 businesses assisted
1.640 businesses receiving
1DB

1,060 businesses receiving
12 hours intensive support
300 growth vouchers
awarded to business

360 potential
entrepreneurs supported
180 new businesses
created£ 750,000 private
sector investment levered
1.000 new jobs created in
companies supported

competitive, stronger and sustainable
Promote entrepreneurship and encourage more dynamic and
innovate new businesses and improve business survival rates

Mobilise and coordinate business support infrastructure to
provide a coherent and high quality service

Inputs

£249,485 marketing initiative

£1,798,100 Growth Hub Gateway
£1,720,180 Growth Support Programme
£1,469,080 Growth Mentoring Pregramme
£1,500,000 Growth Vouchers

Inspirational marketing campaign
encouraging take up of support

In depth information, diagnostic and
brokerage service

Lean Start Launchpad to engage, motivate
and support potential entrepreneurs
Masterclasses and networking to support
early stage businesses with growth plans
Mentoring to support growth plans
Growth vouchers to help businesses
implement projects



Page 10



Boost Business Lancashire
Annual Report and Evaluation 2017-18
1. Introduction

Boost Business Lancashire is Lancashire's Business Growth Hub, targeting a
range of support services on the County's high growth companies. It has
operated since 2012 and has delivered a range of business support
programmes, funded through a combination of ERDF, BEIS and Lancashire
County Council’s own resources.

Following a successful pilot phase from 2013-15 funded mainly through a
combination of ERDF and LCC match funding, in January 2016 Lancashire
County Council was successful in securing an additional round of funding to
deliver a new suite of programmes for a further 3-year period. Boost is
currently managed by a small team within the County Council on behalf of the
Lancashire Economic Partnership and is delivered on the ground through a
series of procured contracts with specialist business support organisations.

The LEP views Boost as one it's key growth initiatives and has produced this
Annual Report to provide to highlight performance and ensure the LEP
complies with wider national BGH and LEP assurance frameworks.

2. Objectives
The core objectives of Boost are:

e To provide a programme of business support that will encourage the
growth of Lancashire SMEs;

e To encourage business support agencies to work together to provide a
coordinated and easily understood business growth offer; and

e To promote a programme of high quality business support, accessible
to all Lancashire SMEs.

The overall aim of Boost is to improve SME competitiveness within
Lancashire and to promote economic growth. Activities are focused on
encouraging individuals who have the potential to set up high growth
businesses and supporting existing businesses that have the capacity for
growth. The target is to stimulate new investment and job creation by
systematically identifying and removing the barriers to their growth,
encouraging innovation and in promoting enterprise.

In terms of the scale of activity, over the period April 2017 to March 2018
Boost handled 2921 enquiries, of which 456 were dealt with at source by the
Boost Gateway, 2034 were referred to Boost projects and 592 were referred
to other business support organisations.

Page 11



3. The Delivery Model

The Boost ‘offer’ to businesses is made up of a number of core ‘products’ or
services each delivered via a procured contractor. They are:

Growth Support Programme (Contractor — Winning Pitch)

Growth Mentoring (Contractor — Community and Business Partners)
Boost Gateway (Contractor — Growth Lancashire)

Boost Marketing (Contractor — Freshfield)

A team of 4 staff within Lancashire County Council’s Economic Development
Service manages the delivery contracts. By separating the management and
delivery functions in this way there is a strong focus on performance and the
effectiveness of the delivery mechanisms. The contractual arrangements
mean that there are strong financial incentives for the procured organisations
to deliver against agreed targets and there are clear mechanisms for
managing performance. The overall ‘logic model’ for Boost that explains the
relationship between its overall aims, activities and impact is shown below:

The Boost ‘Logic Model’

Praject Rationale

Strategic Cortext Market Failuere

Objectives

n ST i T them mere

#lrrale He o m
etreent andd [oh rreahen
o e

Ryl s Ly B

4. Governance

The Lancashire Economic Partnership (LEP) has established a formal sub-
committee, its Business Support Management Board, to oversee the Growth
Hub. The membership of that group includes the two upper tier Chambers of
Commerce in Lancashire, the Federation of Small Business, the Institute of
Directors and the Institute of Chartered Accountants England and Wales.

Until his retirement, the Chief Executive of East Lancashire Chamber was the

Page 12



LEP's designated SME Champion and the link between the Management
Board and the LEP Board. The LEP is currently looking to recruit a new SME
Champion with the aim of filling this postion by the end of summer 2018.

This approach promotes transparency and inclusivity. It also encourages
greater understanding and communication of business support initiatives and
provides independent governance and scrutiny arrangements.

5. Business Support Simplification

The UK government has a long-standing policy commitment to simplifying the
map of publicly funded business support. Lancashire for its part has played an
active role in the promotion of business support simplification in the North
West. This has been reinforced in recent years through the lead role of
Lancashire County Council in coordinating local authority business support
across the County and in managing the Business Growth Hub.

In distributing EU funding for Lancashire, the LEP is acutely aware of the
need to allocate resources in such a way that they do not duplicate business
support provision or cause the proliferation of support services. To this extent
all ESIF funded business support projects are required to work together to
ensure that businesses can clearly understand the map of provision.

The Boost Gateway service is responsible for putting this into practice,
ensuring that businesses are signposted to the most appropriate source of
support, both from the public and private sectors. To aid this task, a live
directory of all available support projects in Lancashire is maintained.

The outcome is that businesses know where to go for help and that they are
directed to the organisations who can be of best support to them.

6. Working in Partnership

In developing and commissioning the business support service offer across
Lancashire, both the LEP and Growth Hub have been conscious not to
duplicate the specialisms and commercial activity of partner organisations.

It is recognised that businesses already access trusted services from a range
of providers and Boost has developed good relationships across the patch to
ensure that all intermediaries understand the role of the Growth Hub, and that
the specific nature of services they offer are understood in order to accurately
refer businesses for support. Boost works well with a wide range of business
support agencies, both in the public and private sectors. This includes:

Universities — in relation to product development and innovation;

Banks — in relation to loan funding for businesses;

Chambers of Commerce - in particular related to support for exporting and
new markets;

FSB - as the representative voice of the SME sector;

Private sector intermediaries such as accountants and legal practices — joint
working on Boost & Co;

Page 13



Local authorities — joint business support events;

Enterprise Agencies — mutual referrals of business enquiries;

Innovate UK (IUK) — informing Northern Innovation Strategy;

Knowledge Transfer Network (KTN) — exploring the training of business
advisors to use 4 Manufacturing tool;

Department for International Trade (DIT) — co-location of advisor to handle
FDI enquiries and liaison with foreign owned companies in Lancashire;

British Business Bank (BBB) — cooperation regarding the Northern
Powerhouse Investment Fund and start up loans, signposting businesses to the
Business Finance Guide

Intellectual Property Office (IPO) — use of database of patent registrations
and master classes;

Be the Business (Productivity Leadership Group) - Productivity through
People initiative at Lancaster University;

Angel Networks — support for the Access to Finance scheme;
7. Boost & Co

In addition to the direct marketing and business engagement activities
undertaken by the Growth Hub, it should be noted that specific effort has been
made to engage with business intermediaries whose clients may require further
support.

Boost not only provides a number of funded programmes that provide direct
delivery to businesses. Boost has a membership group of over 100 private and
public sector business support providers called ‘Boost & Co’. Members include
accountants, law firms, venture capital firms, banks, colleges, business
membership organisations, networking groups and many more. Members of
Boost & Co have specific services and offers that can help businesses grow.

The core Boost programmes therefore work closely with Boost & Co to ensure
that businesses across Lancashire have access to the most relevant support
for their specific needs. In practice this is manifested in a number of joint events
for businesses and mutual referrals to business support services.

8. Client Management and Data systems

All interactions with businesses and individuals seeking support are recorded
on the Evolutive CRM system. This covers basic contact information, the
current size and status of the business, and the nature of the business growth
issue facing the company. The system also records contact hours spent with
each client and tracks their progress against their expectations, also recording
any outputs and outcomes arising from the Boost support.

The information is shared with BEIS and DCLG as part of the agreements for
ongoing funding support, and certain data fields are shared with other delivery

Page 14



organisations so that the support for businesses can be effectively

coordinated.

All data is stored, managed and processed in line with current Data Protection

and GDPR requirements.

9. Levels of activity 2017-18

Over the period 15t April 2017 to 315t March 2018 some 2921 enquiries were
handled by the Boost Gateway, of which 456 were dealt with at source, 2465
enquiries resulted in referrals of which 2034 were referred to Boost projects

and 592 were referred to other business support organisations.

1 April 2017 Growth Hub
Indicator to Cumulative
31 March 2018 | (since launch)

Total number of businesses engaged 1,876 5.819
(enquired)
Total number of individuals (pre-starts
and start-ups (trading less than one 750 1,735
year) engaged
Tota.l number of referrals to 2.500 7345
public/private support
Total number of referrals to national
programmes e.g. DiT/UKT]I, Innovate 143 325
UK, IPO, Start-Up Loans etc
Tptal number of businesses receiving 872 1,157
diagnostic & brokerage support
Tota! number of businesses that have 1277 3.197
received intensive face to face support
Total number of individuals who have 178 490
been helped to start a business
Total r)umber of rnentc_mng or business 208 935
to business relationships created
Total number of jobs created 395 1,722
Total number of jobs safeguarded N/A 293
Increase in GVA £5,265,007 £57,304,495
Private sector match secured £281,601 £979,341

10. The Impact of Boost

Boost is the subject of ongoing performance management and assessment of
its effectiveness. Monthly recording takes place of the impact of Boost
services on local businesses and the wider economy against a number of key
indicators. The data is used to influence the delivery of the core contracted

Page 15




services and regular dialogue takes place between the LCC Project
Management Team and the delivery organisations.

Table below shows the overall performance for 2017-18 against contracted

ESIF targets.

ERDF Indicator Target Achieved
2017-18 201718
Number of enterprises receiving support (C1) 627 465
Number of enterprises receiving grants (C2) 177 85
Number of enterprises receiving non financial 457 403
support (C4)
Number of new enterprises supported (C5) 101 178
Private investment matching public support (C6) £436,950 | £198,527
Employment increase in supported enterprises 436 395
(C8)
Number of potential entrepreneurs assisted to be 199 203
enterprise ready (P11)
Number of enterprises receiving IDB (P13) 1121 872
GVA increase in supported enterprises (£) £5,000,000 | £5,265,006

Overall Boost is performing well, with the majority of targets being achieved or
just slightly below expectation, however there have been areas of concern.
The activity on C2 grants (Growth Vouchers) has consistently fallen behind
targets despite intensive support and guidance from the LCC PMT. This has
a knock on effect on the C1 targets (C2 is a subset of C1) and on C6 that
represents the private sector contribution to match the Growth Vouchers.

The delivery contractor has indicated that they will not be able to achieve the
lifetime target (300) for Growth Vouchers (2016-18) and therefore a revised
target of 168 has been agreed together with a reduced C6 target. The
resulting deficit of 132 C1 outputs has been resolved in discussion with two of
the other Boost delivery organisations who have agreed to increase their
performance to make up this shortfall by the end of 2018.

All other ESIF targets are projected to be achieved by the end of 2018.
11. Independent Evaluation.

An independent evaluation of Boost was conducted in late 2017 by leading
economic consultancy Regeneris, with the results being published in
December. The report states that “early estimates of economic impact are
encouraging”. In terms of achieving the core aim of encouraging business
growth, the report is positive:

“‘Emerging intermediate impacts point to knowledge impacts being more
readily achieved by businesses than improvements in specific business
capabilities. We would expect knowledge impacts to precede more
substantive changes in business capabilities. Boost has boosted business

Page 16



confidence through encouraging them to take risks and be more ambitious in
their pursuit of growth. The majority of businesses (69%) reported that without
Boost the changes they would have been able to implement would either not
have occurred, been smaller, taken longer to materialise or delivered a
smaller range of benefits.”

The report concludes that the overall direction of travel is positive, including:

e Growth in turnover of businesses assisted — Output progress on the
number of enterprises receiving support is on track. Our survey
measured changes in business performance through Boost including
turnover. It is too early to be definitive, but 28% of respondents have
observed turnover improvements since receiving Boost support.

e Growth in value added in supported companies — Output progress
on the number of enterprises receiving support is on track. The survey
measures changes in business performance through Boost including
productivity. It is too early to be definitive, but 38% of respondents have
observed productivity improvements since receiving Boost support.

e Improved business formation rates — Lancashire has a below
average rate of business births relative to regional and national
benchmarks. Output progress in terms of the number of new
enterprises supported and the number of potential entrepreneurs
assisted to be enterprise ready is largely on track. The survey revealed
that 16% of respondents identified that their aim was to start a
business prior to receiving support. All of these have made progress
against this aim, with 40% identifying progress has been made but
more to achieve, whilst 60% have achieved their mission.

« Improved new business survival rates — the beneficiary survey
assessed progress against business aims established prior to Boost
support. This included 71% of all respondents saying they wanted to
grow the business and 85% identifying that some progress had been
made with achieving this since receiving support.

e More business support programmes aligned with Boost — the
effectiveness of Boost in referring more than 80% of enquiries received
to further support is testament to the progress Boost has made in
building an aligned business support ecosystem in Lancashire.

12. Client Satisfaction

In October 2017, as part of the Evaluation process, Regeneris conducted an
online survey of businesses and individuals who had received support from
Boost. 256 responses were received. Despite dissatisfaction among some
businesses over the level of understanding of the challenges they face, the
survey suggests that beneficiaries are generally satisfied with the support they
received through Boost.

Page 17



When asked about the overall quality of advice and support provided, almost
three quarters (72%) of respondents rated the overall quality of support as
good or very good. Almost two thirds of beneficiaries rated the usefulness of
the support highly. This is a substantial improvement from the previous
evaluation of Boost in 2014, where a significant proportion of the beneficiaries
(two in five) rated the usefulness of the support as poor or very poor. This
could be a reflection of the efforts made to better tailor support, which had
previously been highlighted as an area for improvement. (Is there not
something about more realistic business expectations of those working with
Boost — the grant hungry have moved away from Boost, we're working with a
different cohort of businesses?)

In terms of the potential future impact of Boost on those businesses assisted,
the survey found that many businesses are mid-way through, or a matter of
months from finalising their involvement with Boost. Whilst impacts are only
just starting to emerge for many beneficiaries, there are encouraging
prospects for the near future. One fifth of respondents expect a large or
transformational increase in turnover over the next 12 months. More than 70%
of businesses expect some level of turnover increase within the next 12
months, with more than 60% expecting to increase employment.

13. Lessons learned and areas for future improvement

The evaluation of Boost highlights that the model has developed well and
improved over a number of years. Good practice has been developed, the
project is well managed however there are a number of areas for further
improvement.

Areas of refinement that have been identified include:

e Strengthening Strategic Account Management approaches to ensure
long term relationships between advisors and SMEs are cultivated, and
providing formal aftercare which will enhance the quality and impact of
interventions and help to ensure the full impact of projects can be
realised;

e Consideration of physical space or pop up drop in facility as part of the
future Boost model. The Globe Centre provides for this in one area of
Lancashire, but further satellite hubs may be necessary to achieve the
geographical coverage;

e Best practice reviews acknowledge that deeper rather than broader
support delivers the greatest economic returns and whilst lighter touch
approaches such as IDBs achieve greater market penetration, they do
not translate into substantial economic returns. Where appropriate,
encourage IDBs after core support to facilitate follow-on advice and
maintain contact with target businesses.

Page 18



e The Gateway function should concentrate squarely on business
engagement and referrals and ensure it remains independent of
administering core support (i.e. Growth Vouchers).

e The nature of the marketing resource varies by strand with some holding
this in the form of staff time, whereas others have access to an expense
budget to support efforts such as telemarketing. The scale of the
marketing budget needs to reflect routes into Boost and the
effectiveness of these.

e More detailed consideration needs to be given to the effectiveness of
referral systems. This is not just about the number of businesses
referred but the outcome and positive business experience as a result of
referrals.

14. Future developments

LCC is currently seeking ESIF funding to further develop Boost over the
period 2019-21, in order to build on the success already achieved, to maintain
the momentum for business growth in Lancashire and to develop the support
offer to anticipate changes in the economy, locally, nationally and
internationally. The revised delivery is model based on a close examination of
the existing programme, the feedback from the recent evaluation, the
continued diversification of the Lancashire economy and recent developments
affecting Lancashire businesses and their markets.

Based on this analysis there would be four key components to Boost post
2018:

Business Relationship Management — this would be the main platform for
business engagement and signposting to support. This will comprise a team
of highly trained and experienced frontline advisors, whose role will be to
engage with target businesses and to identify barriers to business growth.
They will have a detailed understanding of the business support infrastructure
in Lancashire and will broker relationships with those agencies able to provide
the most appropriate support for client businesses;

Growth Support Programme, will be targeted at new and young businesses,
helping them to acquire and apply the core skills to drive business growth. It is
a resource to help individuals crystallise their business ideas and to equip
them with the business tools, techniques and skills needed to raise their
ambitions for growth. It will also support young, growing businesses, providing
support, encouragement and skill development to enable businesses to
accelerate their growth plans;

Growth Mentoring — is a programme that harnesses the experience and
skills of established entrepreneurs and senior managers to support existing
businesses to identify and overcome the barriers to their growth. These are
experienced owners and managers who lend their expertise free of charge to

Page 19



smaller, less experienced businesses and guide them through key stages in
their business growth.

Over the coming years there is also the need to further enhance the services
provided by the Growth Hub for a number of key reasons:

e Further anticipated structural changes in the Lancashire economy;

e Potential impact of on the economy of disruptive technologies (advanced
robotics, energy storage devices, artificial intelligence, mobile internet
services etc.);

e Uncertainties over the future trading relationships with the EU and the
markets for Lancashire goods and services.

This will be addressed by introducing a new strand of support —

‘Boost Business Resilience’ will examine the scale-up potential of key
Lancashire businesses and their ability to grow their sales in UK and
international markets. The programme will conduct an in depth review of
businesses, their products and their key markets and help them to develop
strategies to deal with anticipated changes and potential threats to their
customer base, products and services. It will help with:

e Scale up support;
¢ Productivity;
e Business resilience and market strategies.

Summary and Conclusions

Boost Business Lancashire, the business Growth Hub for Lancashire, was set
up in 2012 and since then has established itself as the definitive business
support platform in Lancashire. It now provides support to over 1800
businesses p.a. It is a partnership model and works effectively in referring
Lancashire businesses to the support most appropriate to their needs. It
provides direct support to businesses where needed, supported by EU and
UK government funding, and match funding provided by Lancashire County
Council.

Boost has grown in reach and popularity in recent years and the delivery
model has evolved over time in response to business needs and changing
economic priorities.

High priority has been placed on performance management and the
measured impact of the project has recorded over 1700 new jobs and
£57million of additional GVA for the Lancashire economy.

Independent evaluations of the initiative have been carried out and the
feedback from these has been used to make the services more responsive
and relevant to business needs.

Boost has also developed in line with the funding requirements of BEIS and
DCLG and the national priorities that have been established for business

Page 20



support, in particular Business Support Simplification, the national Business
Support Helpline, Strategic Economic Plans and the new Industrial Strategy.

Future plans for Boost will, subject to continued ESIF funding, further develop
the delivery model and range of support on offer, and Boost will continue to
listen to businesses, their intermediaries and other business support partners
regarding the role of the Growth Hub and its role in promoting business
growth in Lancashire.

Andy Walker, Head of Business Growth, May 2018

Page 21



Page 22



Agenda Iltem 12

(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972. Itis considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

Document is Restricted

Page 23






(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972. Itis considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

Document is Restricted

Page 27






(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972. Itis considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

Document is Restricted

Page 29






(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972. Itis considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

Document is Restricted

Page 31






Agenda ltem 13

(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972. Itis considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)

Document is Restricted

Page 41






	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 11th October 2017
	6 Growth Hub Annual Report 2017-18
	Enc. 2 for Growth Hub Annual Report 2017-18
	Appendix 1. Growth Hub Annual Report 2017-18

	12 Overview of Publicly Funded Business Support in Lancashire
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	13 Design and Commissioning of Boost 3

